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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good morning.

          3  I'm sorry for the delay in the opening of the

          4  hearing. Thank you very much for your patience. I'm

          5  Councilman Jim Gennaro. I'm Chair of the Council's

          6  Committee on Environmental Protection.

          7                 Today we're holding a hearing on

          8  Intro. 661, the New York City Climate Protection

          9  Act.

         10                 I believe that today's hearing is

         11  particularly timely. It comes at a time when

         12  international, national, and local attention to the

         13  issue of global warming seems to be peaking.

         14                 For example, two weeks ago the

         15  National Scientific Academies of the world's 11 most

         16  industrialized nations, including the US National

         17  Academy of Sciences, issued a joint statement

         18  affirming that global warming is, "real and

         19  increasing," and called on leaders to take prompt

         20  action to combat it.

         21                 The US Senate is currently

         22  considering several competing global warming

         23  provisions for inclusion in the energy bill it is

         24  now debating, and California Governor Arnold

         25  Schwarzenegger recently committed his state to
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          2  massive reductions in global warming pollution over

          3  the next 50 years.

          4                 And last week the US Conference of

          5  Mayors pledged to meet the global warming pollution

          6  reduction set forth in the Kyoto Climate Protection

          7  Agreement. Despite all of this recent focus, the

          8  question can still be asked, does it really matter

          9  if New York City is a leader in the fight against

         10  global warming. My answer to this question is a

         11  resouding yes.

         12                 Let me tell you why.

         13                 First, New York City is the largest

         14  City in the nation, and one of the largest in the

         15  world. When New York City speaks, people definitely

         16  listen. So, when the City makes a clear, strong

         17  statement that global warming pollution is a grave

         18  threat to our health, environment and our economy

         19  and that the City will be a leader in the fight

         20  against it, governments, private businesses and

         21  others will listen and I believe many will follow

         22  our lead.

         23                 Second, it is in our self interest to

         24  lead the fight against global warming.

         25                 This is because its consequences to
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          2  New York City could be catastrophic. For example,

          3  the projected temperature rise of between four and

          4  ten degrees Fahrenheit in 1080 could result in, oh,

          5  God, all kinds of things. Why not: Expanded range of

          6  infectivity of disease-carrying insects and

          7  increased risk of Lyme Disease, encephalitis and

          8  malaria, worsening air pollution, and more

          9  respiratory illness, such as lung cancer and asthma;

         10  the flooding and damage to our infrastructure, such

         11  as our subway, permanent losses of beaches and

         12  coastlines, and greatly-reduced tourism, loss of

         13  wetlands and other critical habitat, reduceability

         14  of New York's water supply system to meet our

         15  demands, and the increased electricity demands and

         16  thus further pressure on an already taxed power

         17  grid.

         18                 The final reason that New York City

         19  should join the fight against global warming is

         20  because the efforts we take in this fight will not

         21  only slow global warming, but they will save

         22  taxpayer dollars by, among other things, cutting

         23  electricity and fuel use, improve our City's air

         24  quality in reducing the pollution associated with

         25  fossil fuel use, and improve the quality of life in
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          2  our communities by cleaning our air and contributing

          3  to more efficient offices, facilities and land uses.

          4                 The bill we're hearing today, Intro.

          5  661, will help to establish New York City as a

          6  leader in the fight against global warming.

          7                 It does this by, for the first time,

          8  creating a comprehensive long-term City effort,

          9  specifically focused on fighting global warming

         10  pollution.

         11                 This effort would mesh very

         12  aggressive, yet readily attainable long-term goals

         13  for reducing the City's global warming pollution

         14  with specific plans and affordable actions in order

         15  to meet them.

         16                 This effort will not only focus the

         17  City operations -- will not only focus on City

         18  operations, reducing City-based emissions by 30

         19  percent by 2020, it would also encourage, in partner

         20  with private entities, to reduce their global

         21  warming pollution as well.

         22                 Before closing, I must recognize and

         23  also congratulate the City for the commitments it

         24  has made relating to global warming.

         25                 These include in 1991, New York City
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          2  joined the City's for Climate Protection Campaign, a

          3  project of the International Council for Local

          4  Environmental Initiatives, and less than two weeks

          5  ago the City signed onto the US Conference of

          6  Mayors' Climate Protection Agreement.

          7                 As I said before, Intro. No. 661 is

          8  intended to ensure that the City meshes aggressive,

          9  yet readily-attainable long-term goals for reducing

         10  global-warming pollution with specific plans and

         11  actions, in order to achieve them.

         12                 As such, I believe this legislation

         13  fully compliments and properly builds on the City's

         14  commitments that it's already made to global

         15  warming.

         16                 And with that, I will close my

         17  opening statement, but just wish to thank in a

         18  special way Robert Kulikowski, who will be our first

         19  witness, so I'll call him forward, for all that he

         20  has done thus far in this battle, and, you know, all

         21  of the great environmental activities he does on

         22  behalf of our great City.

         23                 And, so, I would like to call Mr.

         24  Kulikowski, a good friend of this Committee, and a

         25  good friend of everyone in New York City, for all
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          2  the good work he does. And Council Member Arroyo,

          3  from the Bronx, has joined us. I'm also joined by

          4  Donna DeCostanzo, Counsel to the Committee, Richard

          5  Colon, my own Chief of Staff Peter Washburn, who has

          6  worked so long and hard on this issue, Veronica

          7  McNeil from the Finance Division is also joining us

          8  as well.

          9                 And with that said, we can start our

         10  hearing.

         11                 Donna DeCostanzo will issue the oath

         12  and then you can proceed to the testimony, and then

         13  once again thank you.

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         15  right hand.

         16                 In the testimony that you're about to

         17  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         18  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         19                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I do.

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         21                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Good morning, Council

         22  Member Gennaro and Council Member Arroyo. And thanks

         23  for those very kind words, Jim. I think we're, you

         24  know, on the same side of a lot of issues, and

         25  certainly share the goals.
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          2                 I'm Robert Kulikowski, and I'm the

          3  Director of the New York City Office of

          4  Environmental Coordination, and I thank you for the

          5  opportunity to comment on Intro. 661, the New York

          6  City Climate Protection Act.

          7                 The Administration strongly supports

          8  the intent of this legislation, the reduction of

          9  greenhouse gas from City operations. There's a

         10  growing body of scientific evidence that clearly

         11  indicates that the earth is becoming warmer, and

         12  that this climate change is largely due to

         13  anthropogenic sources.

         14                 Recently, as Jim noted, the U.S.

         15  National Academy of Sciences, along with the science

         16  academies of ten other countries, issued a joint

         17  statement on global response to climate change,

         18  acknowledging that climate change is real, the

         19  academies made several recommendations for world

         20  leaders, among with are identification of

         21  cost-effective steps that can be taken to reduce

         22  greenhouse gas emissions, to work with developing

         23  nations to help mitigate and to adapt to the adverse

         24  effects of climate change while recognizing their

         25  legitimate development rights, and to show
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          2  leadership in developing and deploying clean energy

          3  technologies and approaches to energy efficiency.

          4                 Clearly, this climate change is not

          5  solely a New York City issue but rather a global

          6  one, and one that needs to be addressed globally.

          7                 While it is important to act locally,

          8  and as the Councilman acknowledged, New York City is

          9  a leader, we must place this local action to the

         10  global context, not fool ourselves into thinking

         11  that by taking action solely in New York City we

         12  will solve the problem.

         13                 The Introductory language of the bill

         14  is a little bit misleading, implying that we can

         15  afford dire consequences of climate change by

         16  reducing our own government's emissions, however,

         17  you know, we do need to be, you know, leading the

         18  charge on this.

         19                 Mayor Bloomberg and his

         20  Administration recognized the seriousness of this

         21  issue. That is why we've taken a number of steps to

         22  address greenhouse gas emissions from City

         23  operations.

         24                 In 2002, the Office of Environmental

         25  Coordination was charged with conducting a
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          2  greenhouse gas inventory personally to the City's

          3  Climate Protection Campaign, a voluntary,

          4  non-binding initiative, in developing an action plan

          5  to reduce emissions.

          6                 Currently we're using the Climate

          7  Protection, Cities for Climate Protection target of

          8  a 20 percent reduction over the base year of 1995 to

          9  achieve in 2010.

         10                 I emphasize that this is just a

         11  working target number, developing an actual target

         12  reduction will depend on the components of the

         13  action plan which needs to take into account

         14  cost-effectiveness, feasibility and impact on the

         15  City's economic growth.

         16                 There have been a number of concrete

         17  actions as well. Replacement of incandescent traffic

         18  control devices with light emitting diodes has

         19  reduced energy use by these devices by some 20

         20  percent, saving the City nearly $7 million per year

         21  and cutting carbon dioxide emissions by more than

         22  25,000 tons per year.

         23                 All schools have now been converted

         24  from coal-fired boilers to natural gas or oil, again

         25  reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases.
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          2                 And the City's Energy Cost Reduction

          3  Program, or Encore, a partnership with the New York

          4  Power Authority, reduces emissions by almost 150,000

          5  tons per year and results in an annual savings of

          6  nearly $20 million.

          7                 Last year Mayor Bloomberg formed the

          8  City's Task Force on Sustainability. One of the key

          9  issues that we are addressing is climate change.

         10  Energy issues, such as efficiency and conservation

         11  are properly paired with greenhouse gas emissions in

         12  this venue, allowing the needs of the City to be

         13  addressed, balancing necessary economic growth cost

         14  effectiveness.

         15                 As a City we certainly don't want to

         16  stifle or impede economic growth by capping energy

         17  use just to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

         18                 This is embodied in the key

         19  recommendations of the Science Academy's

         20  identification of cost effective, and I underscore

         21  cost effective, steps to reduce greenhouse gas

         22  emissions and recognition of legitimate development.

         23                 Our task force is currently working

         24  on formulating the local action plan for the Cities

         25  for Climate Protection Campaign.
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          2                 Also in 2004, the City's Department

          3  of Environmental Protection formed an agency-wide

          4  Climate Change Task Force. In partnership with

          5  Columbia University's Center for Climate Systems

          6  Research, this group is addressing the potential

          7  impacts of climate change on the City's water supply

          8  and wastewater treatment facilities, and

          9  coordinating overall climate change adaptation and

         10  mitigation efforts as part of its long-term planning

         11  efforts - another key recommendation of the science

         12  academies.

         13                 And just last month, as the

         14  Councilman noted, Mayor Bloomberg signed the US

         15  Conference of Mayors resolution on climate change,

         16  an important step in addressing global climate

         17  change and demonstrating New York City's

         18  leading-by-example philosophy.

         19                 Such actions underscore the

         20  Administration's commitment to greenhouse gas

         21  reduction from City operations.

         22                 However, the approach of this

         23  proposed legislation makes it sound as if climate

         24  change and greenhouse gas reduction strategies were

         25  an exact science that can be measured as easily as
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          2  measuring the air temperature.

          3                 This, unfortunately, is not the case.

          4  Calculations of emissions require complex computer

          5  models that use data from City records, the end

          6  result is only as good as the data that are input.

          7  At best, and even if it recognizes this, these

          8  inventories are trend analyses.

          9                 As such, it's impossible to guarantee

         10  that succeeding years will have lower emissions

         11  inventories than the preceding year. There are many

         12  factors that are beyond the City's control that

         13  influence emissions from the City operations.

         14                 Greenhouse gas emissions from the

         15  City's building sector account for about

         16  three-quarters of the City's inventory. A year with

         17  a mild winter and a cool summer, followed by a year

         18  with a colder-than-normal winter, and exceptionally

         19  hot summer will make this requirement difficult, if

         20  not impossible to achieve.

         21                 While the legislation defines

         22  "indirect emissions," it does not place any

         23  parameters on them. While emissions due to electric

         24  power generation are relatively straightforward,

         25  especially if it's from just a single power plant,
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          2  there are other City activities that are not so

          3  clear-cut.

          4                 For example, the purchase of a

          5  computer involves the energy efficiency of the

          6  actual machine, the energy used in its production,

          7  including the factory lighting, HVAC, workers' use

          8  of gasoline to get to work, and so forth, and the

          9  fuel used in the cargo plane or truck to deliver the

         10  computer to New York City. My point is that this

         11  legislation, as drafted, grossly oversimplifies a

         12  very complex issue, both scientifically and

         13  technically in the preparation of inventories,

         14  subsequent analyses and so forth.

         15                 Given such complexity, the bill's

         16  predominant focus on energy conservation is probably

         17  not the best way to go. The Mayor's Task Force on

         18  Sustainability is taking a much more encompassing

         19  approach to examine how the City can best minimize,

         20  or counteract, or offset greenhouse gas emissions.

         21  Approaches such as augmenting tree planting to

         22  offset necessary emissions, reducing vehicle miles

         23  traveled and increasing fuel efficiency of vehicles,

         24  procurement of energy from green sources and similar

         25  approaches will provide a much more comprehensive
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          2  and effective approach to the issue.

          3                 Finally, it is stated that "the

          4  Council believes that additional cost-effective

          5  reductions in emissions could be achieved beyond

          6  that goal, that 20 percent goal that was mentioned,

          7  and that the City could and should make a greater

          8  effort to reduce global warming pollution." Yet,

          9  there is no justification provided for this belief.

         10  Have any analyses, such as economic modeling, been

         11  performed to indicate that such reductions will not

         12  impede the City's ability to provide necessary

         13  services as the overall New York City economy grows?

         14                 In summary, I reiterate that Mayor

         15  Bloomberg and his Administration very strongly

         16  support the goal of reducing or offsetting

         17  greenhouse gas emissions as a lead-by-example

         18  partner in the global community.

         19                 While New York City's efforts in this

         20  arena are important, this is an issue that must be

         21  faced worldwide.

         22                 The mechanics by which reduction

         23  should occur as proposed in this legislation appear

         24  not to be the most effective way for the City to

         25  deal with the greenhouse gas issue. As we have said
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          2  before, we are more than happy to have dialogues

          3  with the Council on how we can achieve our common

          4  goal of reducing this, and I'd be happy to answer

          5  any questions you may have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          7  you for your comprehensive testimony.

          8                 I guess your final statement that

          9  you'd be happy to engage us in dialogue --

         10                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- To pursue the

         12  common goal.

         13                 Can I take that to mean that you'd be

         14  willing to work with us to get a piece of

         15  legislation that we could both support?

         16                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Sure. We've done that

         17  on other ones, so --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         19                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: And we believe that

         20  this really is an important issue that needs to be

         21  addressed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Terrific.

         23  Because we have a commitment to do this, the

         24  Bloomberg Administration has a commitment to do

         25  this, but, you know, we're not going to be around
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          2  forever, the Bloomberg Administration isn't going to

          3  be around forever, and, so, it's our intent to sort

          4  of, you know, do this by local law. And so we

          5  certainly welcome that.

          6                 We welcome the ability to work with

          7  you to give the best bill that we possibly can. As

          8  we said, it's a first hearing on the bill, and

          9  you've been a good partner to this Committee in the

         10  past, and we take up your offer to work with you on

         11  that.

         12                 And I'm going to ask my next

         13  question, I just want to consult with my staff for a

         14  second.

         15                 Okay, now I've got prepared

         16  questioning, and here it comes.

         17                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Here it comes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: In 1991, New

         19  York City joined the Cities For Climate Protection

         20  Campaign, as was previously mentioned. 1991 New York

         21  City joined the Cities for Climate Protection

         22  Campaign?

         23                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I think it was 2001.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: 2001? 2001,

         25  1991, I get, you know, I get confused sometimes.
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          2  2001.

          3                 I understand that as a member of the

          4  CCP Campaign the City is expected to follow

          5  methodology that includes five milestones to achieve

          6  these reductions. I won't go through all of the

          7  milestones, but it's now four years since the City

          8  joined the Campaign and can you tell me which of the

          9  milestones the City has met and for those milestones

         10  yet unmet, what are its plans to meet them? The

         11  inventory, the setting of the reduction targets,

         12  develop a local action plan, implement a local

         13  action plan, and monitor progress and report

         14  results. Those I guess are the milestones. So, how

         15  are we doing on them?

         16                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Well, we have

         17  completed an inventory, which is now undergoing both

         18  technical data quality and scientific review. So,

         19  we've met the first milestone. We have worked

         20  extremely closely, John Dickenson of my staff, who

         21  is here as well, has actually performed Herculean

         22  efforts, and we deal with the ICKLI (phonetic)

         23  people almost on a daily basis about New York City,

         24  as you can imagine, is probably the most complex

         25  city that they've ever done or helped do an
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          2  inventory for. It's taken us a lot longer than even

          3  ICKLI originally estimated. So, I think, you know,

          4  but I think we've done extremely well assessing the

          5  inventories from the sectors that we've looked at.

          6                 So, we've accomplished milestone one.

          7  We've got a working target, as I said, you know,

          8  that's probably going to be modified, depending on

          9  how the location action plan comes up, because we do

         10  have to look at the overall City operations to make

         11  sure that we don't, you know, cut off our nose to

         12  spite our face.

         13                 So, we think that, you know,

         14  something in the 20 percent range is, based on some

         15  preliminary data, is probably a fairly feasible

         16  target and reasonable to achieve.

         17                 And we are now beginning to work on

         18  local action plans.

         19                 You know, we're about halfway there.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         21  you.

         22                 Of course, anyone who follows this

         23  issue, it almost goes without saying, to the extent

         24  that we're successful in reducing our greenhouse

         25  gases, we're also reducing all kinds of other
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          2  pollutants, as well. Because in order to produce

          3  C02, you're, you know, burning something, and you're

          4  producing all kinds of, you know, other Clean Air

          5  Act, so-called criteria pollutants which will be

          6  reduced. So, it's not only a focus on this global

          7  effort, it's kind of like a multiplier to reduce

          8  global gases. So, that's it. And let me follow-up

          9  with another question now.

         10                 On June 9th, the City of New York

         11  joined the US Conference of Mayors Climate

         12  Protection Agreement. I understand that among other

         13  things, joining the agreement commits the City to an

         14  inventory and global warming emission in City

         15  operations and in the community, and creates an

         16  action plan to reduce these emissions.

         17                 Can you tell me about the City's plan

         18  to inventory emissions in the community and develop

         19  an action plan to reduce these emissions?

         20                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: We are actually

         21  having conversations with ICKLI because there is a

         22  community-based, or community side inventory as

         23  well. You know, we're having a significant amount of

         24  technical and scientific issues just getting the

         25  City's inventory done to actually do that more
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          2  globally and the community is going to take a lot

          3  more effort I believe.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We can help.

          5                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Well, one of the

          6  problems is that, you know, the City records that

          7  we're looking at were generated long before the

          8  climate, Cities for Climate Protection Campaign was

          9  initiated, so we'll go back to try to reconstruct

         10  data to put into the emissions model.

         11                 It's either not there, it's missing.

         12  It's a poor quality, or it's not segregated the way

         13  the model requires it to be. And that's part of what

         14  I meant by, you know, right now it's an imprecise

         15  science. You know, we just are limited by the

         16  available of data that we can use.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 Could you give us some of your

         20  observations about the CCP Campaign's action plan

         21  about, you know, what it's going to focus on? The

         22  action plan?

         23                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: As part of the

         24  Mayor's Task Force on Sustainability, one of the

         25  major issue areas that we're looking at is air
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          2  quality and energy. As you well, understand, they're

          3  linked because production of energy requires power

          4  generation some place, and unless it's totally green

          5  powered, you're going to have an emission.

          6                 So, we have a goal to set forth a

          7  fairly comprehensive outline for the way the City

          8  over the next number of years should address air

          9  quality issues, including the greenhouse gases.

         10                 That's being undertaken right now.

         11  So, you know, while we don't have exact components

         12  to a local action plan, we expect to by the end of

         13  the summer.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         15  you.

         16                 Has there been any sort of

         17  collaboration with other levels of local governments

         18  or state government in this initiative? And could

         19  you describe that?

         20                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Yes. ICKLI is sort of

         21  the great facilitator when it comes to greenhouse

         22  gas and inventories, they do this world wide and so

         23  through them we are, you know, our office, we've

         24  gone up to Toronto as part of a program sponsored by

         25  an organization called "Clean Air Cool Planet," who
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          2  is addressing greenhouse gas and air quality issues

          3  in the northeast, both US and Canada, and so, yes,

          4  we have actually worked with a bunch of other

          5  cities, actually they have come to us and said what

          6  are you doing, which is the way it should be.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm for that.

          8                 What if any programs has the City got

          9  in place to educate the public about global

         10  pollution and measures that can be taken in order to

         11  address this problem?

         12                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: It's actually part of

         13  what the Mayor's Task Force is looking at. One of

         14  the major areas that we're looking at that crosses

         15  all of the so-called or technical environmental

         16  areas is public outreach and education for both City

         17  employees, as well as members of the general public.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And with

         19  regard to the outreach to the private sector on this

         20  issue, how is that?

         21                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Well, the Mayor's

         22  Task Force was formulated by the Mayor addressing

         23  City operations.

         24                 One of the things that we have

         25  discussed internally is what is the best way to
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          2  involve, you know, non-City government entities in

          3  this process, and just we haven't come to a final

          4  conclusion yet.

          5                 Obviously that takes a number of

          6  levels of consultation and approval.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Would you

          8  envision ultimately there would be significant

          9  partnerships with the private sector?

         10                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I think it's very

         11  important to have government private partnerships,

         12  in lots of efforts, not just this one, but this one

         13  particularly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I agree. I

         15  agree.

         16                 I think you answered everything we

         17  had, and I'd just like to thank you, once again, for

         18  your pledge of cooperation to work with us to craft

         19  a bill that both the Council and the Administration

         20  wholeheartedly support, that you know, we could

         21  launch in a united way, and you know, move this

         22  important effort forward.

         23                 And thank you for your ongoing work

         24  on this, and look forward to working with you as we

         25  take this down on the track.

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Great.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks for

          4  coming by. Appreciate it.

          5                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I'm sorry I've got to

          6  run.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          8                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I'd love to stay for

          9  the rest of the hearing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we're

         11  going to call a panel now. Patrick Kinney of

         12  Columbia University; Kim Knowlton, I believe? Kim

         13  Knowlton of Columbia University. And Jeffrey, I

         14  can't make out the last name. H-e- something.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Heal.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Heal.

         17                 At some point I should mention that

         18  we're going to -- at some point we're going to

         19  divert just for a few minutes to take a very quick

         20  vote on two bills that do not relate to the subject

         21  matter before us today. So, if we get a quorum for

         22  that vote, we'll just take a couple of minutes, on

         23  these other, unrelated bills.

         24                 So, I'm just letting you know that

         25  that's coming.
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          2                 Thank you all very much for coming

          3  and being with us today. We appreciate your efforts,

          4  your support, and your willingness to be with us

          5  here today, and your involvement with the staff to

          6  help us get this bill that we have before us today.

          7                 So, Donna DeCostanzo will administer

          8  the oath and then you can proceed with your

          9  statements.

         10                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         11  right hand.

         12                 In the testimony that you're about to

         13  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         14  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         15                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         16                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         18                 So, before each one of you reads your

         19  statement, you just have to state your name for the

         20  record. And if you have copies of your statements,

         21  you can give them to the Sergeant for distribution.

         22  Do I have them already?

         23                 MR. KINNEY: I'll get started, and I

         24  think we'll go from left to right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.
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          2                 MR. KINNEY: I'm Patrick Kinney. I'm

          3  Associate Professor at the Mailman School of Public

          4  Health at Columbia University. And I'm joined in my

          5  testimony by Kim Knowlton, to my left, who is a

          6  doctoral student working with me in the Department.

          7                 And then Jeff Heal has some separate

          8  related testimony, I think.

          9                 Much of what I could said has been

         10  said already. I think the co-benefits are an

         11  important issue. I study health affects of air

         12  pollution and it's very true that we're going to do

         13  a lot of good from the direct health affects of air

         14  pollution by addressing the greenhouse gas emissions

         15  problem.

         16                 In support of the need for greenhouse

         17  gas controls, Kim and I are here to present some

         18  summary findings from a project that we have been

         19  doing over the past four years, to evaluate some of

         20  the potential public health impacts of climate

         21  change for New York City and the surrounding region.

         22                 I'll make some general comments about

         23  the project and then we'll ask Kim Knowlton to

         24  elaborate further on some of the specific findings.

         25                 And I've given you a package,
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          2  including the testimony, and some supportive

          3  documentation, to look at at your leisure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I could just

          5  jump in, while the -- of course because this is a

          6  legislative hearing, our prime focus today would be

          7  any, you know, specific comments you have regarding

          8  the bill that's before us. How we can make it

          9  better, you know, so that is the prime focus. Then

         10  we'll all pretty much have some working knowledge of

         11  some perils of global warming, and, so, you know, to

         12  the extent we can emphasize any commentary, you

         13  know, could be directed toward the bill.

         14                 Of course, if you have to -- we

         15  certainly want to hear about what you're doing, but

         16  the prime focus of today's hearing is the bill

         17  before us and how it could be made better.

         18                 MR. KINNEY: Yeah, okay. So I'll be

         19  brief. I'm very supportive of the idea of New York

         20  City taking a leadership role on this issue. I think

         21  it's very timely. What our project has done is

         22  provided some of the justification which is courted

         23  in the preamble to the bill, and so I just wanted to

         24  point out that there haven't been that many such

         25  sort of specific regional public health impact

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  assessments. There happens to be one that we've done

          3  for New York City and the region. So, I think it's

          4  something that the City Council can draw upon, if

          5  they need support from the public health

          6  perspective. The project really just looked at heat

          7  stress and air quality impacts and there's many

          8  others, as you mentioned, things like vector-born

          9  diseases, extreme storm events, but even just

         10  looking at those two components, it's clear that we

         11  face a problem going forward, if we don't do

         12  something, not only locally, but, of course,

         13  globally, to try to solve this problem, and I would

         14  simply say that, you know, we're making available to

         15  you folks to the extent you need it, all the results

         16  of our project, and feel free to call upon us if you

         17  need help, and thanks for having us here.

         18                 I'll hand it over to Kim and see if

         19  she wants to add some of the specifics.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         21                 MS. KNOWLTON: Well, give me your

         22  comments as to the direction of what our testimony

         23  can bring to this hearing. I will probably limit

         24  what I'm going to share with you, because I was

         25  going to discuss, and sort of elaborate a bit, on
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          2  some of the findings, as Dr. Kinney said, that we're

          3  happy to make available to you in support of the

          4  legislation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Give us an

          6  overview. Go ahead.

          7                 MS. KNOWLTON: As Dr. Kinney said, I'm

          8  Kim Knowlton, I'm a Doctoral Candidate in the

          9  Environmental Health Sciences Department at the

         10  Mailman School of Public Health.

         11                 I've been responsible for running

         12  these health risk assessment programs that project

         13  heat and ozone-related mortality.

         14                 Just to highlight some of the key

         15  points of our findings relative to New York City and

         16  the New York region, which is the classic tristate

         17  31 county area, under a changing climate, summer,

         18  heat-related mortality could increase in the region

         19  36 percent, over a third by the 2020s, nearly double

         20  by the 2050s, and more than triple by the 2080s,

         21  relative to current levels.

         22                 And ozone similarly will have a more

         23  modest increase, but, again, just from the effects

         24  of climate change alone on the region there will be

         25  an increase as we're projecting in ozone-related
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          2  mortality.

          3                 And probably just to keep focused on

          4  the efforts of the comment that you made, I might

          5  just hold there and say any questions that you have

          6  concerning the results and methodology of how we

          7  came up with this, the findings that are in support

          8  of some of the text to the bill, please, we are very

          9  happy to interact with you in any way.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, I'm so

         11  grateful. My staff has had wonderful interactions

         12  with you folks, and you've been very helpful to us

         13  and we're very grateful to you.

         14                 MS. KNOWLTON: Sure. Happy to do it.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 MR. HEAL: I'm Geoff Heal. I'm a

         17  Finance Professor in the Business School at

         18  Columbia. Heal is spelled H-e-a-l. And I'm going to

         19  talk to you very briefly about the economic

         20  consequences of climate change for New York City,

         21  and one or two brief comments about the bill.

         22                 The biggest and probably most easily

         23  measurable economic consequence of climate change is

         24  energy use in the City. When significantly hotter

         25  and significantly more humid in the summer, which
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          2  means demand for air conditioning will increase by a

          3  substantial amount.

          4                 There will be some upset in decrease

          5  in energy use for heating in the winter, but the

          6  calculations that have been done suggest that the

          7  increase in demand for electricity for for AC will

          8  more than offset, pretty much more than offset the

          9  savings from less heating in the winter. And use for

         10  electricity for AC could increase by 30 to 40

         11  percent by 2050. It just means that utilities bills

         12  for households and utility bills for corporations

         13  and office buildings could increase significantly.

         14  You're talking 20, 30 percent increases in those

         15  bills by 2050. A substantial amount.

         16                 It will also require the construction

         17  of new electricity, electric-generating capacity.

         18  Currently we don't have powerplants in place to meet

         19  the additional demand that will be generated here.

         20                 And there are also bottlenecks in the

         21  electric grid that serves New York City, so we have

         22  to bring that to generate the power, to bring it

         23  into the City, and there are a number of bottlenecks

         24  in that grid, so there will be a very substantial

         25  infrastructure investments required to meet both the
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          2  need for extra power and the need to improve the

          3  quality of the grid, in addition to the higher

          4  running costs we have.

          5                 That's probably, of all the effects

          6  they're trying to change, that's the one probably

          7  easiest to put your finger on the numbers to get a

          8  clear understanding.

          9                 Other changes which would have

         10  consequences, significant economic consequences, the

         11  change of rainfall patterns, there's a forecast that

         12  will have both more rain, and the rain will be more

         13  sudden and more intense. That's likely to create

         14  more flash floods, floods on streets, floods on

         15  highways, and in particular, floods in the subway

         16  system. And there are points in the subway system

         17  which are quite vulnerable to flooding and intense

         18  rainfall, and so there will be investments in

         19  infrastructure to maintain the functionality of the

         20  subway system in the face of changes in

         21  precipitation patterns.

         22                 The other issue which would be a big

         23  one for the City, is changes in sea level. I guess

         24  everybody knows the long-term effect of climate

         25  change would be a rise in the level of the sea.
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          2  Parts of New York City are quite low-lined, we could

          3  see Lower Manhattan would look like Venice on

          4  occasions by 2050 or 2070 or 2080, you could have

          5  inundation of significant parts of the City during

          6  really high water storm surges. And again, that

          7  would have a very significant economic consequence.

          8  It's difficult to put a precise number on that, but

          9  it really disrupts normal life and disrupts business

         10  life.

         11                 There will be some, probably some

         12  mild savings in the area of road maintenance in the

         13  winter, there would be less frost, less pothole

         14  damage, less snowplowing, less use of salt and all

         15  of that, so there are some savings there. That would

         16  be the only area in which there is significant

         17  savings as a result of climate change.

         18                 I would also have some concern that

         19  if the City is hotter and more humid in the summer,

         20  you'll get less visitor traffic. All the studies

         21  indicate that tourists are very sensitive to the

         22  climate and the weather conditions at the

         23  destinations. Tourists like to go to cities that are

         24  somewhere in the eighties, not hotter than that and

         25  no colder than that typically, and if you see
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          2  substantial parts of the summer in New York in the

          3  high nineties and the hundreds, very humid, that

          4  could have an impact on tourist traffic, which is an

          5  important revenue generator for the City.

          6                 Those are my comments on the economic

          7  consequences. I can be more precise about those

          8  things and go into more detail, but I'm keeping it

          9  short here.

         10                 My comment on the structure of the

         11  bill is that I'm sympathetic to many aspects of the

         12  bill, but I do believe that, as was said, measuring

         13  the indirect consequences of economic activity here

         14  in the City, the indirect consequences for climate

         15  change is extremely difficult and very debatable. We

         16  have a lot of argument about how you do that

         17  properly, and that could be something that holds up

         18  the whole process. And I think that to stagger this

         19  and look at the direct consequences of economic

         20  activity of climate change may phase in attempts to

         21  reduce, to measure reduced indirect consequences for

         22  a very much longer time period. Those are my

         23  comments. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I'm

         25  intrigued. You believe we should just focus first on
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          2  indirect consequences and then figure out a way, as

          3  the indirect become more measurable and more --

          4                 MR. HEAL: Yeah. And I think it's

          5  important to get something moving in this area. The

          6  symbolic effect, as you said and others have said in

          7  New York City doing something are potentially quite

          8  large. I think we can measure the direct effects, as

          9  the gentleman from the Mayor's Office was saying,

         10  reasonably accurately, and we can regulate those

         11  effects reasonably accurately, so we understand what

         12  we have to do in terms of managing the fuels used in

         13  buildings, the transportation fleet also, things

         14  like that. That's fairly manageable.

         15                 Getting your arm around both the

         16  indirect effects or activities around climate change

         17  is very difficult. In some of the stuff we're using

         18  here is made in China, it's made in Taiwan, it's

         19  made in Mexico, and what the climate footprint of

         20  those activities is is very hard for us to assess.

         21  You're getting yourself into, if I can use a

         22  vernacular kind phrase, a can of worms.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Thank

         24  you. Yes, we certainly want to have the right focus,

         25  and we don't want to get ourselves all tied up on
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          2  knots. We want to make a positive difference here in

          3  New York City, and we want to lead the way. And we

          4  have the Council and the Administration both

          5  sympathetic to this issue, so I think we have the

          6  planets aligned, and we have the benefit of people

          7  like you, who you know this issue better than anyone

          8  else, so we are definitely going to do something and

          9  you're going to be a part of what we do, as you have

         10  already.

         11                 We thank you all so much for taking

         12  valuable time to come here on very, very short

         13  notice, and you know, we look forward to your

         14  ongoing work with us, to, you know, get us a good

         15  bill. And then you've got to go out there in all

         16  your conferences and everything and tell people

         17  about what we're doing, okay? How's that? Okay,

         18  thank you so much. We really appreciate you being

         19  here today. Thank you.

         20                 Okay, Mark Brammer of New York

         21  Climate Rescue. Luis Martinez, NRDC. Jeffrey Eng of

         22  NYPIRG, and Craig Wilson of League of Conservation

         23  Voters.

         24                 And we're joined by a great

         25  environmentalist and a member of this Committee,
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          2  Oliver Koppell, from the Bronx.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          5  right hand.

          6                 In the testimony that you're about to

          7  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          8  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          9                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         10                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think We're

         12  going to take testimony first from Mark. Mark has

         13  been talking about this issue in our Committee for a

         14  long time, and I thank you for your steadfast

         15  dedication to this issue.

         16                 We all have worked on it, but you've

         17  been talking about this at our Committee for a long

         18  time.

         19                 Mark, it's a pleasure to see you

         20  today. It's a pleasure to have everyone here. Thank

         21  you, Mark. I will be happy to take your statement.

         22                 Do I have all the statements?

         23                 MR. BRAMMER: I actually don't have a

         24  written statement, but will get you something.

         25                 Thank you, Congressman --
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          2  Councilperson.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Congressman,

          4  there you go.

          5                 MR. BRAMMER: I'm thinking ahead.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Now you're

          7  talking.

          8                 MR. BRAMMER: And Councilperson

          9  Koppell, I really appreciate the opportunity.

         10                 The reason I don't have written

         11  testimony is because, obviously, I support the bill

         12  and I will submit a statement in support of the

         13  bill, but I really wanted to respond to comments

         14  that I figured would kind of come criticizing the

         15  bill or trying to find alternative ways of

         16  addressing the issue.

         17                 And I noticed that there were, and

         18  I'll try to make this brief, but there were

         19  basically five critical assumptions that were made,

         20  and it's a pitty Bob Kulikowski had to leave, but

         21  I'll send my remarks to him as well and maybe get

         22  some comments from him.

         23                 The first assumption he made was that

         24  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Assumptions made
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          2  by Mr. Kulikowski?

          3                 MR. BRAMMER: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: In his

          5  statement?

          6                 MR. BRAMMER: In his testimony.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          8                 MR. BRAMMER: The first was that

          9  reporting is onerous, and I guess my response to

         10  that is that, yes, it is, I mean good policy

         11  requires that we put some effort together, and I

         12  think makes the assumption that not reporting is

         13  less onerous, and I disagree with that strongly.

         14                 In order for us to maintain critical

         15  attention on this issue, we need to measure our

         16  performance. And that leads me to the second

         17  assumption that he made which was that there was no

         18  way to properly measure trends, because obviously,

         19  you know, the weather changes, so our use patterns

         20  will change so that won't give us a clear idea of

         21  whether we're actually reducing. And the USEPA and

         22  the DOE have come up with a measure called Energy

         23  Use Per Heating Degree Day, which is specifically

         24  designed to address this issue, which is based on

         25  looking at the temperature and aligning that with
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          2  energy use. So, there is a way to actually address

          3  that to look at that, that trends over time, even

          4  though the weather may be different from

          5  year-to-year. So, I think that he ought to take that

          6  into consideration and that's a methodology that's

          7  been developed, and in fact, the DOE has a website,

          8  the Energy Information Administration, has a whole

          9  web-based reporting requirement proposal which is,

         10  it's really quite simple.

         11                 The third thing that he basically

         12  said was that the bill advocates policy outcomes

         13  which are not cost-effective. Or he kind of implied

         14  that, but without actually stating such. And in

         15  fact, every single example he gave of energy

         16  efficiency, which is kind of what this bill

         17  ultimately is trying to derive saved the City money.

         18                 Now, as far as I know, nobody in the

         19  City, in City government, does not need a kilowatt

         20  hour. The City needs services. So, if we make those

         21  services more efficient, they will save us money.

         22  And I think it's really critically important to

         23  recognize that in order for this policy to be

         24  effective, we have to have really direct and

         25  aggressive policies up front that put the money, the
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          2  investment, into our City infrastructure right away,

          3  because that's the only way we're going to reap the

          4  benefits.

          5                 If we wait, then ultimately, you

          6  know, the whole idea behind energy efficiency is you

          7  put money up front but then you reap the benefits

          8  down the line. So, I really think that by requiring

          9  the City government to become more energy efficient,

         10  which is really what this bill does, although it

         11  links it to C02, or other greenhouse gas emissions,

         12  what we're really doing is saying, look, if the City

         13  spends money now, and I know budgets are tight, we

         14  will have money in all of those budgets down the

         15  line by making the City operations in schools and

         16  housing, or whatever, more efficient.

         17                 So, to me, there's no -- and all of

         18  the evidence, I have never seen any study that's

         19  shown me that making, especially building

         20  infrastructure, which you said was two-thirds of our

         21  energy use, making building infrastructure more

         22  energy efficient is not cost effective.

         23                 I mean, obviously, you can do it

         24  poorly, but I think there's enough intelligence in

         25  the City government, there's, you know, people who
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          2  are dedicated to this, and there's enough general

          3  knowledge on the ground from things like the Rocky

          4  Mountain Institute and others, DOE, EPA, Energy Star

          5  Program, there's an active green building movement

          6  in the City.

          7                 I think there's plenty of expertise

          8  to allow the City to do that in an effective manner.

          9                 And I will tell you quick, the last

         10  two points, the fourth was that the Administration

         11  is making progress on the issues. The bill is either

         12  unnecessary or needs reduction in its requirements.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The City wanted

         14  to do a bill.

         15                 MR. BRAMMER: There's no doubt --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We like Bob.

         17                 MR. BRAMMER: No, this is general

         18  criticism. I definitely feel that he has done a

         19  great job. I think being in ICLKI is very important,

         20  I think doing all of these things is important. The

         21  simple fact is, we need a more concrete

         22  demonstration of that. And even if let's say we take

         23  the Bloomberg Administration at its word, like you

         24  said, they're not going to be around during the

         25  whole -- they're going to go and we're going to get
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          2  somebody else. And, you know, there's term limits in

          3  the Council, and we need to create a plan now while

          4  there is some focus on this, that future

          5  policy-makers can live with and that they can build

          6  off of, and the aggressiveness of this bill that

          7  goes a little bit beyond what the City has done

          8  already, committed to, which is voluntary, I think

          9  -- I mean, it's not something that isn't voluntary.

         10                 And then the fifth thing is that New

         11  York can't make a difference in the global warming

         12  problem, and my response to this is two-fold: First

         13  of all, the US is 25 percent of global emissions.

         14  New York City is two to three percent of those

         15  emissions. So we are almost as a city one percent of

         16  the entire global emissions. So, if we were to

         17  reduce our emissions, that actually makes a

         18  significant difference.

         19                 The other thing is, he mentioned in

         20  his own testimony how many cities call us up and say

         21  what are you doing? We are the leader. If we make

         22  changes, if we pass this bill, every other City in

         23  the nation is going to look to this bill and say,

         24  well, we could do that too. And New York City has

         25  done it so we should follow their lead.
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          2                 So, I think that's where I'm going to

          3  lead off, but those are -- and I will get all of

          4  those comments and testimony written up for you as

          5  soon as I can and e-mail them to you, and to the

          6  rest of the Council and to Bob Kulikowski.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          8  you, Mark. You've been a great champion on this

          9  issue for a long time. We greatly appreciate your

         10  advocacy and right when we're in the midst of doing

         11  something, this is great to have you onboard. Thank

         12  you. Thank you.

         13                 Mr. --

         14                 MR. MARTINEZ: Martinez.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Martinez.

         16                 MR. MARTINEZ: After all this

         17  testimony, I don't think anything I'm going to say

         18  is going to be particularly new, but I'd still like

         19  to express our support for the record.

         20                 Good morning. My name is Luis

         21  Martinez, I'm a staff attorney at the Natural

         22  Resources Defense Council, which is headquartered

         23  right here in the City.

         24                 The vast majority of the world's

         25  leading scientists now agree that human activities
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          2  may lead to substantial impacts from the global

          3  climate. Just recently 11 national academies of

          4  science from countries such as the United States,

          5  United Kingdom, China, and Germany issued a joint

          6  statement urging immediate action on global warming.

          7  Consensus estimates warn of an average increased

          8  temperature between two and ten degrees Celsius over

          9  the next century, leading to more severe drought,

         10  rising sea level, shifting seasons and increased

         11  cases of disease.

         12                 In New York this could lead to a

         13  number of problems. Projections show temperature

         14  increases at about four degrees year-round. These

         15  higher temperatures or more frequent heatwaves could

         16  increase heat-related deaths and illnesses from

         17  insect-borne diseases like malaria and West Nile

         18  Virus.

         19                 West Nile was detected in all but

         20  three of New York's counties in 2003, with over 70

         21  human cases reported.

         22                 Increased temperatures would make it

         23  stay more habitable to mosquitoes that carry the

         24  virus, likely leading to increased human infections.

         25                 Temperature increases in the
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          2  projected range would raise average summer

          3  temperatures in New York City to Atlanta levels,

          4  while more than doubling heat-related deaths. Rising

          5  temperatures would also increase ground-level ozone,

          6  further worsening air quality in Metropolitan areas.

          7                 With substantial agricultural

          8  resources, New York is particularly sensitive to

          9  variations in weather. In the absence of any federal

         10  action on global warming, states and now cities have

         11  taken the lead on fighting global warming.

         12                 There are currently regional programs

         13  to cut global warming pollution on both coasts with

         14  more than a dozen states participating.

         15                 We congratulate these communities for

         16  thinking globally and acting locally. New York City

         17  will once again become a global leader, proving that

         18  states and cities can and will do their share to

         19  reduce the impacts of global warming.

         20                 This local law will serve as an

         21  excellent model for other cities to follow, not only

         22  creating a local action plan to reduce large amounts

         23  of global warming emission, but also creating an

         24  inventory of emissions from different sectors in the

         25  New York City community, which would provide a
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          2  roadmap for further action.

          3                 The local law will also help develop

          4  education and outreach programs on how to, on what

          5  is and how to limit global warming pollution,

          6  providing New Yorkers not only information on why

          7  these efforts are being undertaken, but also

          8  allowing them to contribute their own access.

          9                 And finally, this local law will

         10  create a climate action partnership program,

         11  encouraging private entities to reduce their own

         12  emissions, recognizing that all of us must do our

         13  part.

         14                 It is now clear that global warming

         15  is a serious threat, not only to our environment,

         16  but also to our economy and our health, our whole

         17  lifestyle is at risk, including the special things

         18  that make New York City such a special place to live

         19  and work.

         20                 How will we know what we need to do

         21  to fix these problems, and we must act now.

         22                 Polluting emissions from cars and

         23  powerplants are the main source of these global

         24  warming emissions. Cleaner and more efficient

         25  technologies are available, and need to be
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          2  implemented broadly.

          3                 We may still have more to learn about

          4  the serious consequences of global warming but may

          5  know enough to get started.

          6                 Finally, I'd like to thank Council

          7  Member Gennaro and all the other Council members

          8  supporting this measure for having the foresight and

          9  providing the leadership needed to continue efforts

         10  locally to reduce the impacts of global warming on

         11  our communities.

         12                 I strongly urge that the City Council

         13  adopt this bill promptly and thank you for your

         14  consideration.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Martinez.

         17                 Thank you for your statement and also

         18  I welcome you. I think this is your first time

         19  before the Committee.

         20                 MR. MARTINEZ: It is.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I've got a long

         22  relationship with NRDC, as you know, and so, thank

         23  you for your statement on this issue, and welcome to

         24  NRDC and to this Committee.

         25                 MR. MARTINEZ: Thank you for having
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          2  us.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

          4                 Mr. Eng.

          5                 MR. ENG: My name is Jeffrey Eng.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you could

          7  speak a little bit closer to the mic. Just pull it

          8  closer to you. That's fine. The whole thing will

          9  move.

         10                 MR. ENG: Good morning. My name is

         11  Jeffrey Eng. I'll be giving a prepared statement --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is the mic on?

         13  You have to push the button or something.

         14                 MR. ENG: Good morning. My name is

         15  Jeffrey Eng.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: There you go.

         17                 MR. ENG: I will be reading a prepared

         18  statement for Jason K. Babbie from NYPIRG.

         19                 Good morning. My name is Jason K.

         20  Babbie. I am Environmental Policy Analysis for the

         21  New York Public Research Interest Group.

         22                 The NYPIRG is a statewide

         23  environmental protection consulting rights and

         24  social justice organization, with its headquarters

         25  in Lower Manhattan. I would like to thank the
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          2  Chairperson and the Committee for the opportunity to

          3  testify here today on Bill Intro. 661, requiring all

          4  City-owned and operated offices and operations to

          5  reduce their pollution that causes global warming,

          6  otherwise known as greenhouse gas emissions.

          7                 NYPIRG supports this step by the City

          8  government to to hold itself accountable and act as

          9  a leader by example in dramatically its contribution

         10  to global warming.

         11                 As sited in the legislative findings,

         12  there is a lot at stake for New York City when it

         13  comes to the impacts of global warming. More hot

         14  summer days and heat waves will claim New Yorkers'

         15  lives in addition to their quality of life.

         16                 We are all aware of the problem New

         17  York City has with air quality. The desire to clean

         18  up our air and protect our most vulnerable citizens

         19  has led to strong leadership in requiring diesel

         20  vehicles to clean up their act.

         21                 Unfortunately, global warming

         22  exacerbates poor air quality. In 2003, the EPA

         23  determined that ozone-smog made New York City's air

         24  unhealthy to breathe on 21 days and "very unhealthy"

         25  to breathe twice. More hot summer days mean more
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          2  unhealthy and very unhealthy air days, which is very

          3  bad news for children, the elderly and asthmatics.

          4                 The projected three-foot rise in sea

          5  level will also stress New York City's

          6  infrastructure, particularly since two-thirds of

          7  metro area infrastructure is less than ten feet

          8  above sea level.

          9                 This is well within reach of a major

         10  storm with the projected sea level rise.

         11                 Building the necessary production

         12  devices will cost us a great deal of money, but one

         13  major storm would cost us much more.

         14                 The United States global change

         15  research program estimates one major storm across

         16  the metro area, $150 billion.

         17                 Our problems and complications with

         18  global warming are many. And this bill begins the

         19  process of migrating our contribution to it.

         20                 By taking a leadership role with real

         21  reduction goals, the New York City government is

         22  showing others that it can and will be done.

         23                 The incentive program to get

         24  non-governmental participation is also positive.

         25                 NYPIRG suggests taking the incentive
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          2  program to the next step, by setting a City-wide cap

          3  on global warming pollution.

          4                 Mayor Bloomberg has signed an

          5  understanding with other Mayors across the county

          6  that all of New York City will reduce its greenhouse

          7  gas emissions by seven percent below 1990 levels by

          8  2012.

          9                 Meeting these numbers would mean New

         10  York City is in compliance with the Kyoto protocol

         11  which the Bush Administration has walked away from.

         12                 If this bill were amended to set that

         13  reduction commitment, rather than set it up as a

         14  goal, then the bill would codify this commitment.

         15  Such a standard would create a strong incentive for

         16  New Yorkers to become energy efficient and taking

         17  other steps that would have multiple local benefits.

         18                 NYPIRG has been interested in further

         19  discussing additional measures, which would set

         20  mandatory caps that cover the City, perhaps starting

         21  off a sector-by-sector basis at first.

         22                 The inventories required in this bill

         23  would really help us to identify where progress can

         24  and should be made to protect us from global

         25  warming.
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          2                 Nevertheless, setting a standard for

          3  New York City, and looking into the rest of the City

          4  deserves support.

          5                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          6  testify here today.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Eng, for being here. I believe it's your first time

          9  before the Committee as well.

         10                 MR. ENG: So, we welcome you here.

         11  Please give our best to Jason and all of the good

         12  folks at NYPIRG, we look forward to working with

         13  them on this bill and we thank you for your

         14  testimony. We appreciate it.

         15                 MR. ENG: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Wilson. Mr.

         17  Wilson, Craig, it's a pleasure to have you before us

         18  today, and I know that the League has been very

         19  active on this issue. We really appreciate your

         20  strong advocacy on this very, very important issue,

         21  and all the help you've given us this far.

         22                 And I look forward to your testimony.

         23                 MR. WILSON: Thank you.

         24                 As always, it's a pleasure to be

         25  before your Committee.

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Good morning. My name is Craig

          3  Wilson, as many of you know. I'm the Director of

          4  Policy and Advocacy for the League of Conservation

          5  Voters, and I am pleased to be here on behalf of the

          6  league today to strongly support this legislation.

          7                 In order to try and not sound like a

          8  broken record, since I know we all have similar

          9  comments, I'm just going to limit my remarks and

         10  refer you to my written testimony.

         11                 But one thing I'd like to focus on,

         12  in addition to all the direct consequences, a rising

         13  sea level, C02, global warming and such, are the

         14  public health consequences. Right now the City has a

         15  serious air quality problem. We're out of attainment

         16  for ozone air quality and particulate matter

         17  standards, it's separate from this, but actually

         18  there's some science so it's related.

         19                 And also currently we know we have 1

         20  million asthmatics in this City, 300,000 of whom are

         21  children. If our climate is allowed to continue to,

         22  the temperature is allowed to continue to rise, this

         23  problem will only be worsened and exacerbated.

         24  Asthma problem will be worse since there will be

         25  direct health consequences for individuals who also
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          2  raise the cost to our health care system, many

          3  resulting consequences.

          4                 So, that's really just what I'd like

          5  to add for the public record, and, again, I refer

          6  you to my written remarks, and the League strongly

          7  supports this legislation, and we thank you for

          8  carrying it forward.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         10  Craig. The League has been very, very strong on

         11  this, and all of the groups here have been good

         12  champions, it's a pleasure being joined by people

         13  from the scientific community who give up their time

         14  to come forward to really help us out on these very

         15  technical subjects, and we really appreciate the

         16  cooperation of the scientific community here today,

         17  after our first panel, Mr. Kulikowski and all the

         18  advocates for all the work that you've done. And I'd

         19  like to thank in a special way the staff to the

         20  Committee, Peter Washburn, my own Chief of Staff who

         21  works long and hard on this, I'm very grateful to

         22  the staff for that great work, particularly on this

         23  issue, and we clearly are going to get something

         24  done. And all the other folks who were with us today

         25  who are following what we're doing, thank you for
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          2  your involvement in this issue, as well.

          3                 I said that we were going to be

          4  having a vote on a piece of unrelated legislation

          5  which we are going to have, so what I'll do now is

          6  I'm going to, I guess recess this hearing, until we

          7  can reconvene in a couple of minutes for a quorum.

          8  And we did receive, you know, written testimony from

          9  Clean Air Cool Planet, written testimony, and

         10  there's no one else wishing to be heard on this

         11  issue, this hearing is --

         12                 PARTICIPANT: Is it too late to speak

         13  up, I didn't sign in?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Well, you

         15  can come up to the table and talk to us, but this

         16  segment of the hearing is recessed.

         17                 (Recess taken.)

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We are going to

         19  take a vote on two bills. I am happy to be joined by

         20  my colleagues on the Committee. As I stated earlier

         21  in the hearing, my name is Councilman Jim Gennaro.

         22  We're joined by Council Member Arroyo from the

         23  Bronx, Council Member Koppell from the Bronx,

         24  Councilman Vallone from Queens, Council Member

         25  Gallagher from Queens. And today the Committee will
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          2  vote on two bills, proposed Intro. 565-A, in

          3  relation to developing the watershed protection

          4  plan, or the watershed sewershed of Jamaica Bay; and

          5  proposed Intro. 566-A, in relation to creating a

          6  temporary task force to study the feasibility of

          7  transferring wetlands to the jurisdiction of the New

          8  York City Department of Parks and Recreation.

          9                 This legislation was developed to a

         10  large extent from what was learned at hearings

         11  regarding environmental health of Jamaica Bay that

         12  the Committee held in November 2002, and October

         13  2004.

         14                 On March 31st, 2005, the Committee

         15  held a joint hearing with the Committee on Parks and

         16  Recreation on previous versions of the legislation,

         17  Intros 565 and Intros 566, respectively.

         18                 In light of the testimony received

         19  at, and information received subsequently to the

         20  hearing, the bills were changed to the form in which

         21  they exist today.

         22                 Collectively, the use of bills

         23  reflect a focus in determining response by the New

         24  York City Council to make sure the City does all it

         25  can to restore and maintain the water quality of the
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          2  Bay and to protect the precious environmentally and

          3  economically important City-owned wetlands.

          4                 Some of the changes contained in

          5  proposed Intro. 565-A, now the Counsel to the

          6  Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, will walk us through it

          7  very briefly, then we will proceed with the vote.

          8                 Donna DeCostanzo.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: The watershed

         10  protection must be completed by September 1st, 2006

         11  rather than October 1st, 2005. The Commissioner of

         12  Environmental Protection is charged with completing

         13  such plan rather than the Commissioner in

         14  conjunction with a number of other City agencies,

         15  and the State and federal agencies to the extent

         16  feasible.

         17                 The legislation no longer sets forth

         18  the elements that must be included in such plan, but

         19  rather provides that the Commissioner shall assess

         20  the technical, legal, environmental and economical

         21  feasibility of including in such a plan at minimum

         22  the measures set forth on the legislation. The

         23  Commissioner is required to implement the Watershed

         24  Protection Plan as advised from time to time, in

         25  accordance with its provisions and schedule rather
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          2  than on or before the fiscal year beginning July

          3  1st, 2006, and the Commissioner must report on a

          4  biannual basis to the Mayor and the Speaker of the

          5  Council regarding, among other things, the

          6  implementation status of the measures included in

          7  the Watershed protection plan as it may have been

          8  revised.

          9                 Some of the changes contained in

         10  proposed Intro. No. 566-A are as follows.

         11                 The bill was amended to provide that

         12  the City-owned wetland areas to be assessed,

         13  include, but are not limited to, those listed in

         14  existing inventories, any subdisvision that was

         15  added to the legislation requires that the Mayor or

         16  his or her designee report to the Speaker of the

         17  Council regarding a transfer of City-owned wetland

         18  areas to the Department of Parks and Recreation for

         19  those areas for which such transfer was deemed

         20  feasible by the task force created by the

         21  legislation.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         23  you, Donna.

         24                 I thank all the staff that worked on

         25  this issue for several years and for the members of
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          2  the Committee and for the support and all the good

          3  folks that work out at the Bay on the federal, state

          4  and local levels, and with that said, I'll ask the

          5  clerk to call the roll.

          6                 I guess we're going to vote them as

          7  one? We're going to call them separately? Okay, we

          8  will couple the vote and I will ask the clerk to

          9  call the roll.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         11  Gennaro.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of five in

         22  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         23  abstentions, both items are adopted.

         24                 Council members, please sign the

         25  Committee reports. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'd like to

          3  thank the members for their support. I would ask

          4  that the record be held open for other members of

          5  the Committee for some period of time until the

          6  members of the Committee can all vote.

          7                 And with that said, the record will

          8  be left open.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote now stands at

         12  six in the affirmative.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you for

         14  allowing me to vote at this moment.  I vote aye.

         15  Better?

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         17  DeBlasio.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote now stands at

         20  seven in the affirmative, zero in the negative and

         21  no abstentions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I thank all of

         23  the Committee members for the support of these two

         24  bills, and this hearing is adjourned.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 12:06 p.m.)
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